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From: Rourke, Kristin  

Sent: Tuesday, November 27, 2012 12:36 PM 
To: Murray, Chris; Stoner, Frank 

Subject: November BAR - 1512 East Market Street 
 
November 27, 2012 

 

Jefferson Area Board for Aging (Milestone Partners) 

674 Hillsdale Drive  

Charlottesville, VA 22903 

 

Certificate of Appropriateness Application 

BAR 12-11-05 

1512 East Market Street 

Tax Map 56 Parcels 40.4 and 109 

Milestone Partners, Applicant/JABA Timberlake Place LLC, Owner 

Amended site and lighting plans, Side and rear elevations for buildings 1 and 3                 

 

Dear Applicant, 

 

The above referenced project was discussed before a meeting of the City of Charlottesville Board of Architectural Review (BAR) 

on November 20, 2012. The following action was taken: 

Approved (7-0) as submitted.                                 

In accordance with Charlottesville City Code 34-285(b), this decision may be appealed to the City Council in writing within ten 

working days of the date of the decision.  Written appeals, including the grounds for an appeal, the procedure(s) or standard(s) 

alleged to have been violated or misapplied by the BAR, and/or any additional information, factors or opinions the applicant 

deems relevant to the application, should be directed to Paige Barfield, Clerk of the City Council, PO Box 911, Charlottesville, 

VA  22902. 

This certificate of appropriateness shall expire in 18 months (May 20, 2014), unless within that time period you have either: been 

issued a building permit for construction of the improvements if one is required, or if no building permit is required, commenced 

construction. You may request an extension of the certificate of appropriateness before this approval expires for one additional 
year for reasonable cause.   

Upon completion of construction, please contact me for an inspection of the improvements included in this application.   

If you have any questions, please contact me at 434-970-3130 or scala@charlottesville.org.  

 

Sincerely yours, 

 

 

Mary Joy Scala, AICP 

Preservation and Design Planner 

 

 

Mary Joy Scala, AICP 
Preservation and Design Planner 

City of Charlottesville 

Department of Neighborhood Development Services 

City Hall - 610 East Market Street 

P.O. Box 911 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:scala@charlottesville.org
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CITY OF CHARLOTTESVILLE 

BOARD OF ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW 

STAFF REPORT     
November 20, 2012 
 
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

 

Background 

The Timberlake-Branham House at 1512 East Market Street was designated an Individually Protected 

Property (IPP) in 1993. It is a Vernacular Virginia I-house style, built in 1886.  It is listed individually on 

the National and Virginia registers, and is a contributing property in the Woolen Mills Village Historic 

District that was listed on the Virginia Landmarks Register on December 17, 2009 and on the National 

Register on April 12, 2010. 

 

May 23, 1989 -  As a condition of a special use permit for an Adult Day Care Center, the BAR reviewed 

and made recommendations regarding the renovation design changes. 

June 27, 1989 – The BAR approved a certificate of appropriateness for an addition to the building. 

March 27, 1990 – The BAR approved an enclosed patio on the east side of the new addition. 

June 11, 1996 – Staff administratively approved replacing the standing seam metal roof with pre-painted 

standing seam metal roof; installation of gutters and downspouts; repainting building and trim. 

February 24, 2006  – Staff administratively approved replacing the masonite siding on the 1989 addition 

with smooth hardiplank siding. 

January 19, 2010 - The BAR recommended (8-0) that this application for a PUD on tax map 56, parcel 

40.4 at 1512 East Market Street be approved with the provision that the applicant’s proffers be included: 

that the new construction on property adjacent to the Individually Protected Property be subject to BAR 

review, and that the wooded area immediately south and east of the property be subject to a conservation 

easement or some other legally binding requirement that protects and preserves that portion of the 

landscape. 

The BAR made additional comments not part of the motion: they appreciated the neighborhood and 

applicant working together; should be more creative with the parking arrangement and landscaping; group 

the parking and screen cars with low hedges; coordinate and integrate new construction and sustainable 

features with existing buildings; the BAR would be opposed to any landscaping that bifurcates the site; 

need to modulate the design of new buildings; given single family context, should break the appearance 

of duplexes; look to the vocabulary of porches in the neighborhood to create variety. 

May 17, 2010 – City Council approved with proffers the Timberlake Place PUD rezoning. Proffer #1 

requires BAR approval for the initial PUD development and any subsequent changes. 

September 21, 2010 - The BAR approved (7-0-1 with Coiner recused) the proposed new buildings and 

alterations as submitted, but recognizing that the BAR is not approving the final lighting scheme, which 

may be approved administratively.  The BAR would endorse a minimal level of lighting considering that 

the site is the center of a neighborhood, so that a single dwelling light level is more appropriate than that 

of a multi-family commercial property.  In addition, with seniors the contrast index more is a problem for 

visibility. 

October 18, 2011 – (Re-approval to construct three new buildings on adjacent parcel to the Timberlake-

Branham House; changes to some construction materials) The BAR, considering the particular location 

and obligations associated with the review of this project, which make it unusual, approved (6-0-1 with 

Coiner recused) the changes to the design and materials as submitted, with the request that railings in 
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public areas overlooking stairwells or in retaining wall areas keep the composite rather than vinyl 

material.  Also, the windows shall have substantial (4.5”) trim with a sill, not a “picture frame” trim. 

 

Application 

 

The applicant is requesting approval of changes to the landscape plan, approval of a lighting plan, and 

approval to remove dormers from the rear of the new construction. 

 

Changes to the landscape plan include: 

1. Modifications to the S-3 buffer on the east side. The applicant has been in close contact with the 

abutting owner regarding which existing plantings to preserve, and to add plants as needed.  

2. Foundation plantings have been added to the front of the Timberlake-Branham house (11 x 17 sheet). 

3. The landscaping of the “pocket parks” between the buildings had been augmented to provide more 

privacy for the residents. 

 

The lighting plan shows three types of fixtures: pole lights on a ten foot pole, and two heights of bollard 

lights. They are indicated by very small letters, A, B, and D on sheet L1. (The circles on that sheet are 

trees). The pole lights are located in the parking lots. The light levels of the pole lights will reduce by ½ 

when there is no activity. The pathway lights are motion sensor activated. The pole lights exceed 3000 

lumens and will be dark sky compliant. The lighting plan was designed by Mark Schuyler. 

 

The rear dormers (facing the self-storage units) will be eliminated. 

 

_____________________________________________________________ 

 
Application history: The applicant is requesting a Certificate of Appropriateness for revisions to the previously 

approved  new construction on the property adjacent to the Timberlake-Branham property.  A Planned Unit 

Development (PUD), “Timberlake Place,” was previously approved by City Council. Exterior changes to the 

Timberlake-Branham house would be limited to those items in need of repair. Exterior changes to the 1989 Senior 

Center will require the addition of two doors and a double door being changed to a single entry door. 

 

The applicant previously received BAR approval to create senior-friendly or accessible units for low to moderate 

income and mixed-generation workforce housing.  The Timberlake-Branham house would be rehabilitated into two 

market-rate apartments.  The existing Mary Williams Senior Center (1989 addition to house) would be converted to 

four accessible apartments.   

 

Twenty-two units of new construction are approved to be built to the rear, including two 8-unit buildings and one 6-

unit building, and associated surface parking lots. The three new buildings will use Woolen Mills vernacular; 

designed so they appear to be one-story units from the rear of the Timberlake-Branham house. 

 

Site work features: a common palette of indigenous plantings; the majority of existing trees to be preserved; 

retaining walls minimized; black aluminum fencing; residential scale light fixtures. 

Parking areas are partly concrete and partly pervious concrete, reducing the amount of curbing required. 

Exterior mechanical units will be located on the rooftops and screened.  Mechanical units for the historic home will 

not change. 

 

Materials previously approved included Timberline fiberglass asphalt shingles to resemble slate; cementitious siding 

and brick foundations.  Also, composite railings and Marvin fiberglass double-hung windows.  The applicant 

qualified this section that materials may change due to financial costs. 

 

The applicant later received approval for certain material and design changes: 

Remove all porch railings where not required. Change railings from composite to vinyl (except in public areas 

where they must remain composite). 

Redesign the dormers. 

Change the windows from solid fiberglass double-hung to vinyl single-hung. The windows must retain a substantial 

trim with sill. 
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Remove the gutter and full rake return on buildings 101 and 102. 

Change siding on upper gables and dormers from cementitious shingles to vinyl shingles. The colors will also 

change. 

Change the retaining wall material at the ends of the lower parking lot from segmental wall to pressure treated 

lumber. 

 

Zoning 

 

This property is zoned Planned Unit Development (PUD). All the other properties fronting on Market 

Street in this area are zoned R-1S Residential.  The land to the rear along the railroad tracks (with self 

storage units) is zoned M-1 Industrial.  The protected area of the Timberlake-Branham parcel is roughly a 

1.188 acre, L-shaped parcel that includes the Senior Center and the proposed upper parking lot shown on 

the applicant’s drawing.  

 

Criteria, Standards and Guidelines 

 

Review Criteria Generally 

 

Sec. 34-284(b) of the City Code states that,  

In considering a particular application the BAR shall approve the application unless it finds: 

(1) That the proposal does not meet specific standards set forth within this division or applicable 

provisions of the Design Guidelines established by the board pursuant to Sec.34-288(6); and 

(2) The proposal is incompatible with the historic, cultural or architectural character of the district in 

which the property is located or the protected property that is the subject of the application. 

 

Pertinent Standards for Review of Construction and Alterations include: 

 

(1) Whether the material, texture, color, height, scale, mass and placement of the proposed 

addition, modification or construction are visually and architecturally compatible with 

the site and the applicable design control district; 

(2) The harmony of the proposed change in terms of overall proportion and the size and 

placement of entrances, windows, awnings, exterior stairs and signs; 

(3) The Secretary of the Interior Standards for Rehabilitation set forth within the Code of 

Federal Regulations (36 C.F.R. §67.7(b)), as may be relevant; 

(4) The effect of the proposed change on the historic district neighborhood; 

(5) The impact of the proposed change on other protected features on the property, such as 

gardens, landscaping, fences, walls and walks; 

(6) Whether the proposed method of construction, renovation or restoration could have an 

adverse impact on the structure or site, or adjacent buildings or structures; 

 (8) Any applicable provisions of the City’s Design Guidelines. 

 

Pertinent Guidelines for Site Design include: 

 

B. PLANTINGS 

Plantings are a critical part of the historic appearance of the residential sections of Charlottesville’s 

historic districts. The character of the plantings often changes within each district’s sub-areas as well as 

from district to district. Many properties have extensive plantings in the form of trees, foundation 

plantings, shrub borders, and flowerbeds. Plantings are limited in commercial areas due to minimal 

setbacks. 

 

1) Encourage the maintenance and planting of large trees on private property along the streetfronts, 

which contribute to the “avenue” effect. 
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2) Generally, use trees and plants that are compatible with the existing plantings in the 

neighborhood. 

3) Use trees and plants that are indigenous to the area. 

4) Retain existing trees and plants that help define the character of the district, especially street 

trees and hedges. 

5) Replace diseased or dead plants with like or similar species if appropriate. 

6) When constructing new buildings, identify and take care to protect significant existing trees and 

other plantings. 

7) Choose ground cover plantings that are compatible with adjacent sites, existing site conditions, 

and the character of the building. 

8) Select mulching and edging materials carefully and do not use plastic edgings, lava, crushed 

rock, unnaturally colored mulch or other historically unsuitable materials. 

 

 

 

D. LIGHTING 

Charlottesville’s residential areas have few examples of private site lighting. Most houses, including 

those used for commercial purposes, have attractive, often historically styled fixtures located on the 

house at various entry points. In the commercial areas, there is a wide variety of site lighting including 

large utilitarian lighting, floodlights and lights mounted on buildings. Charlottesville has a “Dark Sky” 

ordinance that requires full cutoff for lamps that emit 3,000 or more lumens. Within an ADC District, the 

BAR can impose limitations on lighting levels relative to the surrounding context. 

 

1) In residential areas, use fixtures that are understated and compatible with the residential quality 

of the surrounding area and the building while providing subdued illumination. 

2) Choose light levels that provide for adequate safety yet do not overly emphasize the site or 

building.  Often, existing porch lights are sufficient. 

3) In commercial areas, avoid lights that create a glare.  High intensity commercial lighting fixtures 

must provide full cutoff. 

4) Do not use numerous “crime” lights or bright floodlights to illuminate a building or site when 

surrounding lighting is subdued. 

5) In the downtown and along West Main Street, consider special lighting of key landmarks and 

facades to provide a focal point in evening hours. 

6) Encourage merchants to leave their display window lights on in the evening to provide extra 

illumination at the sidewalk level. 

7) Consider motion-activated lighting for security. 

 

 

Discussion and Recommendations 

 

Staff recommends approval as submitted.  In addition to these changes, the applicant noted they have 

gone back to cementitious shingles rather than vinyl shingles. 

 

Suggested Motion 

 

Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City Design Guidelines for Site 

Design, I move to find that the proposed revisions to landscaping and lighting, and the removal of rear 

dormers satisfy the BAR’s criteria and are compatible with this property and the abutting Individually 

Protected Property (Timberlake Branham), and that the BAR approves the application as submitted. 
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